
* * * * PUBLIC NOTICE * * * *

NOTICE OF A CITY COUNCIL REGULAR SESSION IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING
A WORKSHOP SESSION

OF THE CITY OF CORINTH
Thursday, February 6, 2020, 5:45P.M.

CITY HALL - 3300 CORINTH PARKWAY

CALL TO ORDER:

WORKSHOP BUSINESS AGENDA

1. Hold a discussion regarding Emergency Management Roles.

2. Receive a report and hold a discussion on Technology Services policies and procedures.

3. Hold a discussion regarding the performance goals for the City Manager for 2020-21.

4. Receive a report, hold a discussion and provide staff direction on the creation of the Fire Control,
Prevention, and Emergency Medical District.

5. Discuss Regular Meeting Items on Regular Session Agenda, including the consideration of closed
session items as set forth in the Closed Session agenda items below.

ADJOURN WORKSHOP SESSION

*NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN of a Regular Session of the Corinth City Council to be held at Corinth City Hall
located at 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas. The agenda is as follows:

CALL TO ORDER, INVOCATION, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE & TEXAS PLEDGE:
"Honor the Texas Flag: I pledge allegiance to thee, Texas, one state under God, one and indivisible".

CONSENT AGENDA
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be enacted in one motion.
Should the Mayor, a Councilmember, or any citizen desire discussion of any Item that Item will be removed
from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately.

1. Consider and act on the minutes from the January 9, 2020 Workshop Session.

1



2. Consider and act on the minutes from January 9, 2020 Regular Session.

3. Consider approval of RG3 metering system infrastructure costs and annual software renewal expenditure.

CITIZENS  COMMENTS
In accordance with the Open Meetings Act, Council is prohibited from acting on or discussing (other than
factual responses to specific questions) any items brought before them at this time. Citizen's comments will be
limited to 3 minutes. Comments about any of the Council agenda items are appreciated by the Council and may
be taken into consideration at this time or during that agenda item. Please complete a Public Input form if you
desire to address the City Council. All remarks and questions addressed to the Council shall be addressed to the
Council as a whole and not to any individual member thereof. Section 30.041B Code of Ordinance of the City
of Corinth.

PUBLIC HEARING

4. The Corinth City Council will hold a public hearing, consider testimony, and act upon an ordinance
amending the zoning classification from  C-2, Commercial to PD, Planned Development with a base
district of C-2, Commercial on an ±7.12 acre tract of land legally described as Block 1, Lots 6-A1, 6-B1,
and 6-C1 of the Pecan Creek Subdivision, and is situated in the William Garrison Survey, Abstract 1545
within the City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas and is more commonly known as 5150 S I-35E,
Corinth, TX.( Enterprise PD Zoning).

Staff Presentation
Applicant Presentation
Public Hearing
Staff Response
Take Action

BUSINESS AGENDA

5. Consider and act on approval of a Public Tree Care Ordinance which provides for principles, best
management practices, and tree management on all publicly owned property.

6. Consider and act on a Resolution ordering a Joint General Election with Denton County to be held on May
2, 2020 to fill the offices of one Council Member for Place 1, One Council Member for Place 3 and
One Council Member for Place 4; establishing procedures for that election and providing an effective date.

7. Consider and act on a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Corinth, Texas designating a
multi-purpose amphitheater and related infrastructure as a venue project (the "Amphitheater Venue
Project”) and designating a method of financing the Amphitheater Venue Project, a new short-term motor
vehicle rental tax at a rate not to exceed five (5) percent, in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 334
of the Texas Local Government Code, as amended.

8. Consider and take action on the renewal of the Street Maintenance Sales Tax.

2



COUNCIL COMMENTS & FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
The purpose of this section is to allow each councilmember the opportunity to provide general updates and/or
comments to fellow councilmembers, the public, and/or staff on any issues or future events. Also, in accordance
with Section 30.085 of the Code of Ordinances, at this time, any Councilmember may direct that an item be
added as a business item to any future agenda.

CLOSED SESSION
The City Council will convene in such executive or (closed session) to consider any matters regarding any of the
above agenda items as well as the following matters pursuant to Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.

Section 551.071.  (1) Private consultation with its attorney to seek advice about pending or contemplated
litigation; and/or settlement offer; and/or (2) a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the government body
under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State of Texas clearly conflicts with chapter
551.

Section 551.072. To deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if deliberation in an open
meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations with a third
person.

Section 551.074. To deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or
dismissal of a public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against an officer or employee.

Section 551.087. To deliberate or discuss regarding commercial or financial information that the governmental
body has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, stay, or expand in or
near the territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental body is conducting economic
development negotiations; or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to a business prospect.

After discussion of any matters in closed session, any final action or vote taken will be in public by the City
Council. City Council shall have the right at any time to seek legal advice in Closed Session from its Attorney on
any agenda item, whether posted for Closed Session or not.

RECONVENE  IN  OPEN  SESSION  TO  TAKE  ACTION, IF NECESSARY,  ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS.

ADJOURN:

Posted this 31st day of January, 2020 at 11:30 a.m. on the bulletin board at Corinth City Hall.

________________________________
Kimberly Pence, City Secretary
City of Corinth, Texas

3

Kimberly Pence



   
    WORKSHOP BUSINESS ITEM    1.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 02/06/2020  
Title: Emergency Management Roles
Submitted For: Bob Hart, City Manager  Submitted By: Kim Pence, City Secretary
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Citizen Engagement &

Proactive Government
Regional Cooperation
Organizational Development

AGENDA ITEM
Hold a discussion regarding Emergency Management Roles.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Will provide a general outline on the Emergency Management Roles and Council's role within the plan.

RECOMMENDATION
N/A

4



WORKSHOP BUSINESS ITEM    2. 
City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 02/06/2020
Title: TECH POLICIES
Submitted For: Bob Hart, City Manager  Submitted By: Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director
Finance Review: N/A Legal Review: N/A
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Organizational Development

AGENDA ITEM
Receive a report and hold a discussion on Technology Services policies and procedures.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
In 2019, the Fulcum Group conducted an assessment and audit on the City's network infrastructure, IT systems, and
policies and procedures based off the National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST) SP800-30 framework.
This framework provides a scoring system to help quickly prioritize and address areas of defficiency and risk in a
government IT setting.

The Fulcrum Group presented a report to the City Council in November 2019 of their findings and
recommendations to help mitigate any potential risk to the City's IT system.  A recommendation of the study was
for staff to develop policies and procedures. 

Staff will provide a report on recommended policies for council consideration.  

RECOMMENDATION

5



   
    WORKSHOP BUSINESS ITEM    3.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 02/06/2020  
Title: Performance Goals for City Manager
Submitted For: Bob Hart, City Manager  Submitted By: Kim Pence, City Secretary
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Land Development

Infrastructure Development
Economic Development
Citizen Engagement &
Proactive Government
Regional Cooperation
Organizational Development

AGENDA ITEM
Hold a discussion regarding the performance goals for the City Manager for 2020-21.  

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
The performance goals for the City Manager are linked to the Strategic Plan and future budgets. Over the next
12-month period, the City Manager will establish performance goals and will provide the City Council with those
performance goals in a separate cover. Upon review and consideration of the performance goals, the City Manager
would like to receive direction and consensus from the City Council.

RECOMMENDATION
Recommend Council consensus on the performance goals.

6



WORKSHOP BUSINESS ITEM    4. 
City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 02/06/2020
Title: Fire District Procedures
Submitted For: Bob Hart, City Manager  Submitted By: Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director
Finance Review: Legal Review: 
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Citizen Engagement & Proactive Government

Organizational Development

AGENDA ITEM
Receive a report, hold a discussion and provide staff direction on the creation of the Fire Control, Prevention, and
Emergency Medical District. 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Local Government Code, Chapter 344; Chapter 3 &4 of the Election Code; and Chapter 321 of the Tax Code
require specific actions be taken by the Governing Body and the Temporary Fire Control, Prevention,and
Emergency Medical District  prior to the call for the election to create to the district. Staff will provide an overview
of the process.   

RECOMMENDATION

7



CONSENT ITEM    1. 
City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 02/06/2020
Title: January 9, 2020 Workshop Session
Submitted For: Bob Hart, City Manager  Submitted By: Kim Pence, City Secretary
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Citizen Engagement & Proactive

Government

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on the minutes from the January 9, 2020 Workshop Session.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Attached are the minutes from the January 9, 2020 Workshop Session. The minutes are in draft form and are not
considered official until formally approved by the City Council.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of the January 9, 2020 Workshop Session minutes.

Attachments
Minutes 

8



STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF DENTON 

CITY OF CORINTH 

On this the 9th day of January 2020 the City Council of the City of Corinth, Texas met in Workshop Session 
at the Corinth City Hall at 5:45 P.M., located at 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas. The meeting date, 
time, place and purpose as required by Title 5, Subtitle A, Chapter 551, Subchapter C, Section 551.041, 
Government Code, with the following members to wit: 

Members Present: 

Mayor Heidemann  
Sam Burke, Mayor Pro Tem 
Scott Garber, Council Member 
Tina Henderson, Council Member 
Lowell Johnson, Council Member 

Members Absent: 

Kelly Pickens, Council Member 

Staff Members Present 

Bob Hart, City Manager 
Kim Pence, City Secretary 
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing Director 
Patricia Adams, Rockefeller, & Fort 
Jerry Garner, Police Chief 
Michael Ross, Fire Chief 
Helen-Eve Liebman, Planning and Development Director 
Ben Rodriguez, Planning and Development Manager 
George Marshall, City Engineer 
Jason Alexander, Economic Development Corporation Director 
Shea Rodgers, Technology Services Manager 

CALL TO ORDER: 
Mayor Heidemann called the meeting to order at 5:45 p.m. 

WORKSHOP BUSINESS AGENDA: 

1. Hold a discussion and consider the date and time of the city council meetings .

Bob Hart, City Manager – The city charter is silent as to the requirements of the city council

meetings with the only reference being found in Section 3.06: 
At all meetings, three (3) Councilmembers shall constitute a quorum for the purpose of
transaction of business. The Mayor shall not be counted in the determination of a quorum.

Ordinance section 30.055 establishes the regular meeting dates and times as the first and third
Thursday of each month at 7:00 p. m.

A discussion item has been paced on the agenda to discuss changing the meeting days and
times at the request of Councilmember Henderson.  The following points are provided to assist

with your discussion:

9



 
 

• City councils typically meet one, two or four times per month.  
• City Councils commonly meet on Monday, Tuesday or Thursday evenings; however, a 

few meets during the workday, i.e., at 9:00 am, 1:00 pm or 3:00 pm.  
 

Current boards meet on the following schedule: 
◦EDC          1st Monday 
◦P&Z          4th Monday 

◦KCB          3rd Tuesday 
◦Ambassadors       2nd Tuesday 

◦P&R         as needed 
◦Ethics      as needed 
 

• Regional TML meetings are conducted on the 1st Thursday of each quarter 
• Municipal Court meets on Tuesday (full day) and Thursday mornings.  

• North Texas Commission meets on the 3rd Thursday of each quarter 
• Need to be cognizant of the DCTA Board and the NCTCOG Board meeting days 
• Need to be cognizant of the 30- day window for plats and subdivision approvals relative 

to the Planning and Zoning and Council meeting schedules. 
• Mondays are complicated by Monday holidays – Presidents Day, MLK day, Memoria l 

Day, Labor Day 
• Ensure the presence of the city attorney. Our attorney, Patricia Adams, has other city 

meetings on the 2nd and 4th Mondays: and the 1st, 2nd and 3rd Tuesdays. 

 
Sometimes when you lay out these, it is more complicated than it appears. 

 
Tina Henderson, Council Member - You and I talked about changing the meeting dates but 
after reading the information you provided, I don’t think there is a need to discuss it further.  

 
It was the consensus of the Council to keep the meetings on Thursday evenings.  

 
2. Hold a discussion and provide staff direction relative to the establishment of a Youth 

Advisory Council (YAC). 

 

Bob Hart, City Manager – A lot of communities have a youth advisory council. This is a 

program where you have 9th through 12th graders involved in learning about local 
government but they also are typically assigned projects that they may do or investigate and 
may make recommendations council with regards to some of the long term planning, 

particularly where it relates to youth viewpoint. They have also been involved all the way 
from designing the interior of a roundabout to doing movies in the park or activities going on 

within the community. Giving advice on some programs going on such as parks and 
recreation; having input on park master plans. Lake Dallas started a Youth Advisory Council 
about a year and a half ago. It is a seven-member Council, Denton has one. They are common 

around the state. Texas Municipal League has a YAC summit yearly for one or two days. The 
National League of Cities has part of their program devoted to the youth being involved in 

the national programs. It seems to be a good thing. We talked internally with the staff, a staff 
liaison will make that work. We would have Emily Beck who does our communications and 
Jason Alexander would be the two staff people that would be involved and providing the 

10



 
 

leadership. The one thing I think is a little bit complicated here is when you start recruit ing 
people, you will recruit people out of Lake Dallas High School, Ryan High School, Guyer 

High School, Classical Academy and then your home schooling. We got five groups that we 
are drawing from. When I have been involved in these in the past, generally we are dealing 

with one high school in the community, so it is a lot easier. This one, I think is going to take 
a little bit more effort, but assuming you go forward with this we would look at kicking it off 
in September 2020, for the fall semester.  

Mayor Heidemann - What is the age group? 

Scott Garber, Council Member – 14 through 18  

Bob Hart, City Manager – So you pick them up freshman, sophomore, junior senior for a 
one-year term. They would fill out an application. I have always treated them like every 
other advisory boards so they had to come in for an interview with you or a committee of 

you and I would think we want somewhere between seven and 11 people. We would want to 
try to get closer to 11 than the seven. I have seen some of them, limit them to about 7 a lot 

of them will go up to 11 to 15. Killeen used to have about 30. I am not sure we need that 
many, generally 11 is a nice sized group. The experience I have chaperoned to go to the 
TML Summit, and I have also taken the group to the National League of Cities when it was 

in Austin a few years ago. Emily was in Youth Advisory Council while she was in high 
school so having her experience and a positive. I will be glad to answer any questions.  

Mayor Heidemann - Is this something that they get involved in learning how government 
functions?  

Bob Hart, City Manager – It depends on how you structure it. Yes, you can do that 
generally, you learn a lot about state and local government. You also learn a lot about 
leadership so there’s the emphasis there.  

Mayor Heidemann - Do you need a consensus from the council to move forward? 
  
Bob Hart, City Manager – Yes, I am going to assume everything is solid. We will be 

bringing back an ordinance for you. We will look to get applications sometime this spring.  

Tina Henderson, Council Member - I talked to Melinda Galler, the assistant city manager 

of Lewisville, they have one. I talked with her at length, she offered to help us however she 

can. I think it would be great. Since Lake Dallas already has one and we're going to be 

pulling from the same schools? Would we want to do the Lake Cities YAC?  

  

Bob Hart, City Manager – Lake Dallas has seven members, one is from Corinth. The other 

six are from Lake Dallas. It depends on where you would want to put the focus and it 

seemed to me that you’re better off  by doing them by the town because you’re going to 

want some feedback about the parks or about the trails, with the development that we are 

talking about, I think we are going to want the youth centered on Corinth and not the Lake 

Cities broadly. 

11



 
 

3. Hold a discussion regarding cyber security training-phishing. 

Bob Hart, City Manager – We are doing a lot of education awareness for cyber security. A 

lot of it is around phishing. We have spent the last six months making sure employees are 

trained. The provider supplies email and if the employee fails, additional training is required. 

We are only as good as our weakest link. All advisory boards are included. I would like for 

everyone to be on the same training schedules, once per quarter. We will move forward with 

this in the next few weeks.  

 

4. Discuss Regular Meeting Items on Regular Session Agenda, including the consideration 

of closed session items as set forth in the Closed Session agenda items below. 

Scott Garber, Council Member – I was curious with the climate change policy, when we 
were initially talking about it, it was climate resiliency as part of the Scenic City. 

Bob Hart, City Manager – The bond rating agencies, Moody’s in particular but even 
Standard & Poor’s and Fitch wanted to know what we are doing about climate change so we 

added is so that we have done all the work with the resiliency, we get credit for it and then 
use it in a practical manner. We are asking you to consider that policy so when we go for the 

re-rating or anything we do in the next year or two, we have a policy in place. 
 

Lowell Johnson, Council Member – I think with Moody’s they just re-released their new bond 
determination for rankings, it is 10% of another subsection which works out to be about 8%.  
 

Bob Hart, City Manager – We sent it to our financial advisor. I think we will be the model 

but having the Geos Institute and all of what we have done, we are sailing right through it. 
Other parts of the state will have some work. I will share it with the other Lake Cities, they 

can operate off our data because it is unique to our area.  
 

5. Receive a Presentation, hold a discussion and give staff direction regarding the Lake 

Cities Fire Department.  

 

Bob Hart, City Manager – Chief Ross, Lee Ann and I will run through this. This is the 
discussion we had with the three cities.  
 

   
 

12



The timeline is as follows: 

We finished the study and Chief Ross will go through it with each of the cities over the next 

two weeks. Here are some of our service key dates: 

13



Michael Ross, Fire Chief – These numbers are based on calendar years, not fiscal. The big 
shock is from 2010 – 2019 we had a 47% increase. Up until February 2019, our department 

was identical. The exact same number of people and equipment responding from the exact 
same places and managed to control those incidents.  

We needed to add station three and added nine personnel to help offset the 47% increase over 
the last 10 years.  

14



This is how we have it broken down. 

Here is a look at our recommendations from the study. Items in red, we have completed but 
will continue to review. The green section is next to be completed. The company thought we 
were good enough to seek accreditation so we will work on it.  

Bob Hart, City Manager – We will shift to the overview. 

15



As a reminder, we talked about the only place we can move is the accommodation box. I think 

that is where we are and where we have spent the last two years. The approach and interactions 
are built around that, meeting with the groups and supplying the information. 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing 

Director – When we start allocating cost, we have used the same model as when we took 
over the fire department in 2008.  

16



 
 

 
 
We used three cross drivers to determine how those costs will be distributed, calls, population 

and assessed value. What I put, just as a reference, so you can see the 2016 allocation. The 
only increase was Hickory Creek and Shady Shores. The data shows considerable growth in 
call volume and population. They had considerable growth in their AB value. We provide this 

as a transparency so they can see the data we used to determine their percentages.  
 

 
 

We looked at new programs we will be proposing with the new contract. Our fleet is in great 
shape and the Quint will be replaced. The radio equipment we will need to purchase due to 

becoming obsolete. 
 

17



On the revenue side, several years ago, the other cities wanted the revenues and expenditures 
to be netted so they would get credit on the EMS that were coming in. We always provide 

those to them. EMS is consistent and so I didn’t increase.  

18



 
 

 
 
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing 

Director – This is anything outside of Denton County. It could be a traveler on the highway 
or someone visiting that becomes ill.  

 
This is quite a few columns are the current contract and the red is what we are proposing. I 
separated wages from operations. The majority are wages and benefits and those are the only 

expenditures that will increase over the next five years. The increase includes 3% merit 
increase, 5% in health insurance and three firemen in the fourth year of the contract. Chief 

Ross has worked hard to not increase expenditures. This is just operational expenditures, we 
did not add in debt service for station three. We did not add debt service for fire administrat ion 
at the public safety facility nor did we add utilities, which are monitored by tech. It also does 

not include any legal expenditures.  
 

 
 
The four command vehicles are on a five-year replacement schedule.  

19



 
 

 

 
As a point of reference, this is the amount the cities are paying in the current year. Focusing 

on this year as comparative as we move to the next slide. We are paying 4.1 but only because 
we are picking up the majority of the nine safer positions right now. That will decrease when 

we start looking at the next contract period.  

 
Our formulas and what have been agreed upon in previous years, you take the revenues net 

out the expenditures for those years and this would be the amount you would allocate out to 
the cities based on the percentages. Coming in to 2021, we drop from 4.1 to 3.8. Lake Dallas 
would go up, Hickory Creek would go up as well as Shady Shores. 

 

20



 
 

 
Bob Hart, City Manager – We have gone from IS0-4 down to ISO-2 so the homeowners 
insurance savings is better than what they will have to pay. The reaction today was positive. 

We went through these numbers today. Meeting monthly helps with this. A year ago, we had 
the UTA students review the numbers and formulas. At the end, they decided what we had 
was a fair way to do it. All the ongoing conversation has helped. The size of the community 

and cost per capita is important. This is where we are today and gives them perspective of 
where we are today. 

 
 
 

 
 

Sam Burke, Mayor Pro Tem – Could we bring somebody’s tax bill down this way as in totality of 
services? We could put that on the website. Here is your ad valorem tax bill, here is how it is being 
spent also with water. I think it would be great to have it on the website. 

 
Lowell Johnson, Council Member – You almost pay for it in your ISO, you get savings in your ISO 
change. 

21



Bob Hart, City Manager – That must be part of this whole conversation. When you go back 
to the March 3rd meeting. We will want to look at the ISO numbers, your homeowner 

insurance should have gone down this year. This is what we wanted to run through, allocat ing 
it on the formulas. 

Mayor Heidemann – The numbers speak for themselves. When they see these numbers, they 
will see they haven’t been over charged. 

Michael Ross, Fire Chief – We have increased fleet and personnel. We increased our 
firehouses and are almost able to maintain our operational budget almost flat. Along with 

restructuring the command staff, rewriting policies also saved. Doing our part to be 
responsible. We are not wasting money.  

Mayor Heidemann – Thank you Chief Ross, you have been taking the lead on this, 
congratulations on what you have accomplished.  

There was no Closed Session. 

CLOSED SESSION 

The City Council will convene in such executive or (closed session) to consider any matters 
regarding any of the above agenda items as well as the following matters pursuant to Chapter 551 

of the Texas  

Government Code.

Section 551.071. (1) Private consultation with its attorney to seek advice about pending or 
contemplated litigation; and/or settlement offer; and/or (2) a matter in which the duty of the attorney 

to the government body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar 
of Texas clearly conflicts with the Texas Open Meetings Act. 

Section 551.072. To deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if deliberat ion 
in an open meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in 

negotiations with a third person. 

Section 551.074. To deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, 
discipline, or dismissal of a public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against 

an officer or employee. 

Section 551.087. To deliberate or discuss regarding commercial or financial information that the 
governmental body has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have 
locate, stay, or expand in or near the territory of the governmental body and with which the 

governmental body is conducting economic development negotiations; or to deliberate the offer of 
a financial or other incentive to a business prospect. 

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO TAKE ACTION, IF NECESSARY, ON CLOSED SESSION 

ITEMS. 

22



ADJOURN: 

Mayor Heidemann adjourned the meeting at 6:35 p.m. 

AYES: All 

Meeting adjourned. 

Approved by Council on the    day of  , 2019. 

Kimberly Pence, City Secretary 
City of Corinth, Texas 

23



CONSENT ITEM    2. 
City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 02/06/2020
Title: January 9, 2020 Regular Session
Submitted For: Bob Hart, City Manager  Submitted By: Kim Pence, City Secretary
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Citizen Engagement & Proactive

Government

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on the minutes from January 9, 2020 Regular Session.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Attached are the minutes from the January 9, 2020 Regular Session. The minutes are in draft form and are not
considered official until formally approved by the City Council.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of the January 9, 2020 Regular Session minutes.

Attachments
Minutes 

24



 
 

STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF DENTON 

CITY OF CORINTH 
 
On this the 9th day of January 2020 the City Council of the City of Corinth, Texas met in Regular Session 
at the Corinth City Hall at 7:00 P.M., located at 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas. The meeting date, 
time, place and purpose as required by Title 5, Subtitle A, Chapter 551, Subchapter C, Section 551.041, 
Government Code, with the following members to wit: 
 
Members Present: 

Mayor Heidemann  
Sam Burke, Mayor Pro Tem 
Scott Garber, Council Member 
Lowell Johnson, Council Member 
Tina Henderson, Council Member 
 
Members Absent: 

Kelly Pickens, Council Member 
 
Staff Members Present 

Bob Hart, City Manager 
Kim Pence, City Secretary 
Patricia Adams, Rockefeller, & Fort 
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing Director 
Michael Ross, Fire Chief 
Helen-Eve Liebman, Planning and Development Director 
Ben Rodriguez, Planning and Development Manager 
George Marshall, City Engineer 
Jason Alexander, Economic Development Corporation Director 
Shea Rodgers, Technology Services Manager 
 
CALL TO ORDER, INVOCATION, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE & TEXAS PLEDGE: 

Mayor Heidemann called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. Councilmember Garber delivered the 
Invocation and led in the Pledge of Allegiance and the Texas Pledge.  
 

CONSENT AGENDA 

All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be enacted in one 

motion. Should the Mayor, a Councilmember, or any citizen desire discussion of any Item that Item 

will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 

 
1.  Consider and act on minutes from the October 17, 2019 Workshop Session 
 
2. Consider and act on minutes from the October 17, 2019 Regular Session. 
 
3. Consider and act on a resolution reviewing and approving the Investment Policy for funds for the 

City of Corinth; and providing an effective date. 
 
4. Consider and act on a resolution reviewing and approving the Investment Policy for funds for the 

Economic Development Corporation; and providing an effective date. 
 
5. Consider and act on a resolution reviewing and approving the Investment Policy for funds for the 

25



Crime Control & Prevention District; and providing an effective date. 

MOTION made by Councilmember Garber to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. Seconded by 
Councilmember Henderson. 

AYES: Burke, Garber, Johnson, Henderson 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Pickens 

MOTION CARRIED 

CITIZENS COMMENTS: 

In accordance with the Open Meetings Act, Council is prohibited from acting on or discussing (other than 
factual responses to specific questions) any items brought before them at this time. Citizen's comments will 
be limited to 3 minutes. Comments about any of the Council agenda items are appreciated by the Council 
and may be taken into consideration at this time or during that agenda item. Please complete a Public Input 
form if you desire to address the City Council. All remarks and questions addressed to the Council shall be 
addressed to the Council as a whole and not to any individual member thereof. Section 30.041B Code of 
Ordinance of the City of Corinth. 

Denise Wetzel, 1006 Meadows Drive – would like the Council to consider increasing the senior discount 
on our property taxes. There has been a lot of discussion regarding the water bills and the senior discount 
on our water bills is kind of a joke and it would be nice to have a discount maybe so many months out of 
the year or during the summer months that would be great. Additionally, I would like to ask the Council to 
consider reducing the interior subdivision speed limit from 30 MPH to 20 or 25 MPH. Can a City Lower 
the speed limit or is it state law that it be at 30 MPH? 

Bob Hart, City Manager – after a traffic study has been done it can be lowered but no lower than 25 MPH. 

Denise Wetzel, 1006 Meadows Drive – what do I need to do to get the speed limit lowered from 30 MPH 
to 25 MPH? 

Bob Hart, City Manager – we have seen a lot of comments on social media and we have already initiated 
discussion within the staff to look at it. It will take some time for the traffic study and then will be brought 
to Council for consideration of an Ordinance to reset the speed limit. 

BUSINESS AGENDA: 

6. Receive a presentation and hold a discussion regarding boat and RV parking survey.

Helen-Eve Liebman, Planning and Development Director - for a little over a year the City Staff
has received complaints from a small number of residents regarding the parking of Boats,
Recreational Vehicles and Trailers in front of homes in the driveway.

The City’s Code of Ordinances currently allows the parking of boats, R.V.’s, and trailers on a
residential lot in front of a house provided that it is parked on a paved or improved surface such as
a driveway and that it does not extend into the sidewalk. Parking or overhang into the sidewalk is
prohibited.

Additionally, the City’s current Code of Ordinances limits the time that a boat, R.V. or Trailer may

26



be parked in the street up to 48 hours. The Code for Boat, RV’s, and Trailer parking has been in 
effect since 2003/2004. 

City Staff made an informal presentation to the City Council during the work session meeting on 
June 20, 2019. The work session meeting was intended to explain the City’s current Codes relating 
to parking Boats, R.V.’s and trailers on residential lots, and to seek guidance on any changes to the 
text that may be desired. 

Following the work session presentation and discussion City Council wanted to ensure that the 
residents would be aware of any changes and allow for their input. City Staff formulated a brief 
online survey for residents to provide their opinions on the parking of boats, R.V.’s and Trailers 
within neighborhoods. 

The survey was hosted on mycorinth.com from November 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019. There 
were 295 total responses. The results are posted on mycorinth.com. Tonight’s agenda item does not 
propose any action from the City Council. This item is a presentation and discussion of the survey 
results. 

27



28



29



 
 

 
 

 
 

30



 
 

 
 

 
 

31



 
 

 
 

 
 

32



Staff has had difficulty with the following sections of the Code and would like to work with the 
city attorney to bring a clear and simple change once the items have been clarified, proper notice 
given, and on an agenda for action: 

(3) 
(a) A person commits an offense if, in a residential area, the person parks a passenger
car, passenger van, truck camper in combination with its carrying vehicle, watercraft
loaded on a watercraft trailer, collapsible camper-trailer, or other vehicle on a surface
other than a paved or improved surface.

(b) It is an affirmative defense to prosecution for a violation of subsection (a) above
that the motor home, travel trailer, watercraft loaded on a watercraft trailer, or utility
trailer is parked behind the front building line and screened from public view.

The clarification would not change any of the City’s requirement or standards. 

33



 
 

The results of the survey illustrate that the majority of the respondents are in favor of the current 
standards in place. Staff recommends amending the 2 sections of the current ordinance on a future 
agenda to provide needed clarity. 
 
Keith Hall, 4251 FM 2181 – we must keep in mind Corinth is a lake City and it is only natural 
that citizens who desire to have boats and RV’s are going to want to live here. Please also keep in 
mind the limited RV and boat storages available nearby. I also realize there are a good number of 
people who have no desire to own an RV or a boat and prefer that those vehicles are not permitted 
in their neighborhoods. For those folks, there are plenty HOA communities in the City of Corinth 
and the existing code regulations were put in place when most of us chose to move here. I have 
some concerns that is based on a period of events that I incurred with regards to this topic. My first 
concern is that it is acceptable for citizens to use 9-1-1 service to report code violations such as an 
RV blocking the sidewalk, these are not police issues they are code enforcement issues and the 
police seem to have their hands bound while having to respond to these when there is nothing they 
can do. Our City has non-emergency numbers. My second the police department, code enforcement 
and now the City Council seem very eager to listen and react to a single complaining citizen for 
months on end before finally deciding to listen to the community and decide what is best for the 
greater good. All the while, the ongoing harassment that I encountered the whole time fell mostly 
on def ears. There is a total lack of uniform code enforcement in this City. I personally spent over 
$6,000 to become a code compliant citizen, that was in addition to the $550 a month to store my 
RV offsite so I was only bringing my RV home for the weekend and or for repairs to load and 
unload which are things you need to do when you own that type of vehicle. Once I became code 
compliant, the harassment never stopped until I finally contact a lawyer. The harassment subsided 
for a short period until June 20, 2019 a single concerned citizen was allowed to voice a one-sided 
inaccurate description of the on goings in our neighborhood for which the Council listened and is 
not considering action. My question to the members of this Council are what happened to governing 
for the greater good? 
 
Lonnie Dill, 2014 Glen Manor Road – I live here because I like the lake and I think people live 
here for that reason. I moved from Oklahoma because I lived in an HOA and it wasn’t for me. This 
has caused to many problems and should be moved to the front of the agenda to get it straightened 
up as fast as we can. People that were friends in the neighborhood are no longer friends.  
 
Ed Fortuna, 4100 Tree House Lane – I have lived in this neighborhood now for 26 years. I like 
this City. Mr.  Hall and Mr. Dill has already addressed the things I would have said. We need to 
address these issues for the majority of residents in this City and not for 1 or 2 individuals. I am 
against changing the Ordinance.  
 

NO MOTION NECESSARY 

 
7. Consider and act on an appointment of Place 5 of the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
 

Bob Hart, City Manager - Place 5 of the Planning and Zoning Commission was recently vacated 
due to the Commissioner relocating outside of Corinth. Rodney Thornton, Alternate 2, has 
demonstrated active participation on the Planning and Zoning Commission since being appointed 
in October.  
 
Staff recommends appointing Rodney Thornton to a member position on the Planning and Zoning 
Commission. A vacancy will occur with the Alternate 2 position should Mr. Thornton be appointed.  
We will advertise for that vacant position and bring that back to you.  
 

34



 
 

MOTION made by Councilmember Garber to approve appointing Rodney Thornton to the Planning and 
Zoning Commission. Seconded by Councilmember Burke. 
 
 AYES:  Burke, Garber, Johnson, Henderson 
 NOES:  None 
 ABSENT:  Pickens 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 
8. Consider and act on a resolution adopting a Debt Management and Continuing Disclosure Policy 

for the City of Corinth. 
 
 Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance Director - The policy shall provide general guidelines by which 

the City of Corinth will issue debt. It is the objective of this policy that (1) the City obtain financing 
only when necessary, (2) the process for identifying the timing and amount of debt or other 
financing, proceed as efficiently as possible, and (3) the most favorable interest rate and other costs 
be obtained. 

 
 This debt management policy applies to the financing activities of the City. It also addresses the 

issues of process, use and limitations. Obligations will be timed for issuance and delivery of 
proceeds as close as possible to the time that contracts are expected to be awarded so that the 
proceeds are spent in the most efficient manner. 

 
 Recommendations from the Government Finance Officers Association are that a Debt Management 

Committee be created to review the debt program. Included in the committee’s responsibilities are 
to discuss and review such topics as: Capital Improvement Program, status of financed projects, 
timing of additional financing needs, the effect of proposed financing activity on the related rates 
supporting the debt (i.e. property tax rate, utility rates, user fees, etc.).  The policy places this 
responsibility with the Finance Audit Committee.   

 
 The Finance Audit Committee reviewed the Debt Policy on Tuesday, December 17, 2019 and 

recommended the policy be forwarded to the City Council for approval. 
 
 MOTION made by Councilmember Johnson to approve the policy as presented Seconded by 

Councilmember Henderson. 
 
 AYES:  Burke, Garber, Johnson, Henderson 
 NOES:  None 
 ABSENT:  Pickens 
 
 Councilmember Johnson – I think it is important for the Council as a whole to go through more 

financial training management services because everybody here needs to understand how the bond 
market works. It can be very confusing and if the Legislature goes ahead in the next session and 
decides to change the ability for us to issue Certificates of Obligation, the Council will probably be 
put in the position to start looking at short term debt such as 5 year bonds or 8 year bonds and the 
market is already preparing for this so it is very important to understand this. I would encourage 
the staff to look for something and put it together for Council for some training.  

 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
9. Consider and act on a resolution approving the Climate Resiliency and Financial Stability Policy 

35



 
 

for the City of Corinth and providing an effective date. 
 
 Bob Hart, City Manager - Credit risks resulting from climate change has become a major 

component in how rating agencies, such as Moody's and S&P, analyze the key credit factors for 
municipal debt issuance. Rating Agencies analysis of economic strength and diversity, which 
signals the speed with which an economy may recover, captures climate-driven credit risks such as 
economic disruption, physical damage, health and public safety, and population displacement. 
Fiscal strength, access to liquidity and levers to raise additional revenue are also key to the 
assessment of climate risks as is evaluating asset management and governance. 

 
 Rating Agencies view of climate change and evaluating the credit risk to local government issuers 

has shifted within the past twelve months. The move by Rating Agencies, such as Moody's and 
S&P, signifies a notable step toward financial institutions committing to the idea that climate 
change should be a routine consideration when evaluating the financial strength of any government 
or company and their ability to pay their debts.  

 
 This policy addresses the City of Corinth's ability to manage climate-driven credit risks such as 

economic disruption, physical damage, health and public safety, and population displacement and 
its ability to recover financially.   

 
 Staff recommends approval of the climate resiliency and financial stability policy.  
 

MOTION made by Councilmember Johnson to approve the policy as presented. Seconded by 
Councilmember Burke. 

 
 AYES:  Burke, Garber, Johnson, Henderson 
 NOES:  None 
 ABSENT:  Pickens 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 
COUNCIL COMMENTS & FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

The purpose of this section is to allow each councilmember the opportunity to provide general 
updates and/or comments to fellow councilmembers, the public, and/or staff on any issues or future 

events. Also, in accordance with Section 30.085 of the Code of Ordinances, at this time, any 

Councilmember may direct that an item be added as a business ite m to any future agenda. 

 

Mayor Heidemann – today is Police Appreciation Day. We are very blessed to have the Police Department 
and Fire Department in the Lake Cities that we have. They are very committed and thank you for all your 
efforts.  
 

There was no Closed Session. 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

The City Council will convene in such executive or (closed session) to consider any matters regarding any of 
the above agenda items as well as the following matters pursuant to Chapter 551 of the Texas  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Government Code. 

Section 551.071. (1) Private consultation with its attorney to seek advice about pending or contemplated 
litigation; and/or settlement offer; and/or (2) a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the government 

36



 
 

body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts 
with the Texas Open Meetings Act.  

 
Section 551.072. To deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if deliberation in an 
open meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations 
with a third person. 

Section 551.074. To deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, 
discipline, or dismissal of a public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against an 
officer or employee. 

 

Section 551.087. To deliberate or discuss regarding commercial or financial information that the 
governmental body has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, 
stay, or expand in or near the territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental body 
is conducting economic development negotiations; or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other 
incentive to a business prospect. 
 
After discussion of any matters in closed session, any final action or vote taken will be in public by the 
City Council. City Council shall have the right at any time to seek legal advice in Closed Session from its 
Attorney on any agenda item, whether posted for Closed Session or not. 

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO TAKE ACTION, IF NECESSARY, ON CLOSED 

SESSION ITEMS. 

 

ADJOURN: 

 

Mayor Heidemann adjourned the meeting at 7:35 p.m. 

 

AYES: All 
 
Meeting adjourned. 

 
Approved by Council on the    day of    , 2020.  

 
 
       

Kimberly Pence, City Secretary 
City of Corinth, Texas 

37



   
    CONSENT ITEM    3.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 02/06/2020  
Title: RG3 metering infrastructure purchasing
Submitted For: Cody Collier, Director  Submitted By: Cody Collier, Director
Finance Review: N/A Legal Review: N/A
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Infrastructure Development

AGENDA ITEM
Consider approval of RG3 metering system infrastructure costs and annual software renewal expenditure.  

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Corinth's new metering system required the installation of wireless data collectors and transmitters to connect the
wireless network. RG3 installed 16 additional Automated Metering Infrastructure (AMI) radio systems to
overcome radio interference and provide full meter system collection at a cost of $40,000.  The additional radio
systems were necessary due to competing bandwidth and background interference which had limited the radius of
normal operation.  RG3 provided a 50% discount on these additional radio systems as client support for Corinth
due to the technical issues we have encountered implementing this new metering system.   

A charge of $10,897.50 for the annual TeslaNet Software License as well as $397.74 for the repair of a transceiver
repair for laptop-based AMR reading was also included in invoice #26222. These charges bring the total invoiced
amount to $51,795.24.

Since October 1, 2019, The Utility Division has been required to purchase additional registers/ transponders for
new water service accounts, two additional transceivers and truck mounted antennas, two Toughbook laptops, and
miscellaneous hardware necessary for normal operation and maintenance.  These charges have totaled $33,527.01
bringing the total charges in this fiscal year with RG3 to $85,322.25.
 

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of the expenditure for the AMI radio system and annual TeslaNet Software License.
 

Attachments
RG3 Invoice 

38



Invoice
Date: 12/31/2019

Invoice #: 26222

Bill To

City of Corinth
Accounts Payable
3300 Corinth Pkwy
Corinth, TX  76208

Ship To

City of Corinth
ATTN: Adam Buice
1200 N. Corinth St.
Corinth, TX 76208

P.O. No.

Terms

Net 30

Due Date

1/30/2020

Rep

MLG

Ship Date

12/31/2019

Ship Via

GROUND

Tag SO / Project

Total

Balance Due

Credits

2912 S. Access Rd 
Longview, Texas 75602

orders@RG3Meter.com   www.RG3Meter.com903-753-3456 903-753-5678 fax

EIN 61-1689218

Item DescriptionQuantity Unit Price AmountB/O

D Evaluate RPRTR30227 Fed Ex Ground
Tracking 124612157837 ship 12/26/19

1 0.00 0.00

FNC Fixed Network collector & Communication
Service (2 year warranty) Does not include
installation, towers, 110v or 220v electricity

16 2,500.00 40,000.000

D Fixed Network Pole Replacement1 500.00 500.00
SAS75 2020 TeslaNet Software License, Tech

Support, AMRSS Server and /or TeslaNet
MDM Cloud Hosting for AMR
Drive-By-System 2017, 2018, 2019
TeslaNet- NO CHARGE

7,265 1.50 10,897.50

D Transceiver Repair Parts1 137.74 137.74
D Transceiver Repair Labor4 65.00 260.00

$51,795.24

$51,795.24

$0.00

39



   
    PUBLIC HEARING    4.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 02/06/2020  
Title: Enterprise Rental Car
Submitted For: Helen-Eve Liebman, Director  Submitted By: Ben Rodriguez, Manager
Finance Review: N/A Legal Review: Yes
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Land Development

Economic Development

AGENDA ITEM
The Corinth City Council will hold a public hearing, consider testimony, and act upon an ordinance amending the
zoning classification from  C-2, Commercial to PD, Planned Development with a base district of C-2, Commercial
on an ±7.12 acre tract of land legally described as Block 1, Lots 6-A1, 6-B1, and 6-C1 of the Pecan Creek
Subdivision, and is situated in the William Garrison Survey, Abstract 1545 within the City of Corinth, Denton
County, Texas and is more commonly known as 5150 S I-35E, Corinth, TX.( Enterprise PD Zoning).
  

Staff Presentation
Applicant Presentation
Public Hearing
Staff Response
Take Action

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
The applicant is requesting a Planned Development district to facilitate the development of a pick-up truck, car, and
truck rental facility with associated used car sales.

The facility will house three (3) different but related uses, including pick-up truck and car rentals, box/flatbed truck
rentals and used car sales. The applicant intends to demolish the existing structures and build a new facility to suit
their specific needs and is intended to reflect similar facilities Enterprise has within the metroplex in both Plano and
Southlake.

Additionally, the applicant is providing additional landscaping buffers and vegetation than what would be normally
required under the Unified Development Code in an effort to mitigate anyimpact of any facility on the surrounding
neighborhoods.

Staff has added language to the Planned Development that would prohibit the use of the property by a stand-alone
used car dealership by stating that used car sales must be in conjunction with auto and truck rentals. Finally, staff
has included language that limits the age of used cars sold on-site to the previous four (4) model years, with all
other vehicles being sold off-site. Staff believes this language will help ensure that a quality inventory of cars is
on-site.

The property is the location of the former Huffines Kia/Subaru dealership and has been vacant since Huffines
moved to their new location on IH35 in February 2019. At the time Huffines was going through the process of
zoning for their new location the owners for this tract filed an affidavit of release of nonconforming land use with
Denton County. This rezoning application does not claim any nonconforming land use rights as it is a new zoning
application for consideration, and the affadavit did not restrict the Planning and Zoning Commission or City
Council from reinstituting that use on the property.

40



Additionally, the property is in a less than ideal location with access being a challenging factor for the use of the
land by other commercial users, as one must Exit IH35 in Denton over a mile away in order to access this site. The
limited access makes the location less than ideal for other non-residential uses such as retail, restaurants or offices.
Due to the limited access the use of the property is mostly viable to those uses which do not need direct access such
as mini-storage, multi-family, or car dealerships.

Since access to the location is limited staff believes that the applicant's proposal represents an appropriate use for
the property.

Public Notices:
Public notices were mailed to all residents within 200 feet of the proposed change on January 8, 2020.  At the time
of packet creation there were no letters in support or in opposition to the proposed change.

Notice of the public hearing was published in the January 12, 2020 edition of the Denton Record Chronicle.

Compliance with the Comprehensive Plan:
The Comprehensive Plan designates the future land use of this area as Commercial.
The proposal complies with the City’s Comprehensive Plan.

Supporting Documents: 

Proposed Ordinance
Affidavit of Release of Nonconforming Land Use
Mailed Public Notice
Public Hearing Notification Area Exhibit

RECOMMENDATION
At the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting on January 27, 2020 the Commission voted to unaminously
recommend approval on the condition that regulations be added prohibiting the use of loudspeakers on the property.
That regulation has been added to the proposed ordinance included in this packet.

Staff recommends approval as presented.

Attachments
Enterprise PD Ordinance 
Noncornforming release affidavit 
Enterprise Mailed Notice 
Enterprise Zoning Notification Buffer 

41



ORDINANCE NO. 20-02-06-__ 

 

ENTERPRISE PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT #54 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CORINTH, TEXAS, AMENDING 

THE CITY’S COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, SPECIFICALLY THE 

COMPREHENSIVE ZONING ORDINANCE AND THE “OFFICIAL 

ZONING DISTRICT MAP OF THE CITY OF CORINTH, TEXAS,” EACH 

BEING A PART OF THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE OF THE CITY 

OF CORINTH, BY AMENDING THE ZONING CLASSIFICATION FOR 

THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT “A”, ATTACHED HERETO 

AND INCORPORATION HEREIN, FROM C-2, COMMERCIAL TO PD-

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT ZONING DISTRICT WITH A BASE 

ZONING DESIGNATION OF C-2, COMMERCIAL ON AN 

APPROXIMATE 7.12 ACRE TRACT OF LAND LEGALLY DESCRIBED 

AS BLOCK 1, LOTS 6-A1, 6-B1, AND 6-C1 OF THE PECAN CREEK 

SUBDIVISION SITUATED IN THE WILLIAM GARRISON SURVEY, 

ABSTRACT 1545  IN THE CITY OF CORINTH, DENTON COUNTY, 

TEXAS, AND IDENTIFIED AS ENTERPRISE PLANNED 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 54 (“PD-54); PROVIDING FOR THE 

INCORPORATION OF PREMISES; PROVIDING A LEGAL PROPERTY 

DESCRIPTION; APPROVING A PLANNED DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT 

PLAN (EXHIBIT “B”); APPROVING PLANNED DEVELOPMENT LAND 

USE REGULATIONS (EXHIBIT “C”); PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY 

NOT TO EXCEED $2,000 A DAY FOR EACH VIOLATION OF THE 

ORDINANCE AND A SEPARATE OFFENSE SHALL OCCUR ON EACH 

DAY THAT A VIOLATION OCCURS ON CONTINUES; PROVIDING A 

CUMULATIVE REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SAVINGS 

CLAUSE;  PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION; PROVIDING A 

SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 

DATE. 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Corinth, Texas, adopted Ordinance No. 13-05-02-08, which 

established a Unified Development Code of the City, including the Comprehensive Zoning 

Ordinance and the “Official Zoning District Map of the City of Corinth, Texas,” (the “Zoning 

Map”), in accordance with the City’s Comprehensive Plan; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Property, described in Exhibit “A”, is zoned as PD-Planned Development 

zoning district, more specifically identified as Enterprise Planned Development District No. 54 

(“PD-54”), with a base zoning designation of C-2, Commercial under the City's Unified 

Development Code and as designated on the Zoning Map; and 

 

WHEREAS, an authorized person having a proprietary interest in the Property has 

requested an Amendment to the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance and the Zoning Map to change 

the zoning classification of the Property; and  

 

 

42



Ordinance No. 20-02-06- 

Page 2 of 11 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council and the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of 

Corinth gave the requisite notices by publication and otherwise and afforded a full and fair hearing 

to all property owners generally, and to the persons interested and situated in the affected area and 

in the vicinity thereof; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the Property has unique characteristics 

and that zoning through a planned development district is the most appropriate mechanism for 

zoning the Property, thus an amendment to the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance and the Zoning 

Map of the City’s Unified Development Code, in accordance with the Land Use Regulations set 

forth in Exhibit “C”, should be approved; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council considered the following factors in making a determination 

as to whether the requested change should be granted or denied: safety of the motoring public and 

pedestrians using the facilities in the area immediately surrounding the sites; safety from fire 

hazards and damages; noise producing elements and glare of the vehicular and stationary lights 

and effect of such lights on established character of neighborhoods; location, and types of signs 

and relation of signs to traffic control and adjacent property; street size and adequacy of width for 

traffic reasonably expected to be generated by the proposed use around the site and in the 

immediate neighborhood; adequacy of parking as determined by requirements of this ordinance 

for off-street parking facilities; location of ingress and egress points for parking and off-street 

loading spaces, and protection of public health by surfacing on all parking areas to control dust; 

effect on the promotion of health and the general welfare; effect on light and air; effect on the over-

crowding of the land; effect on the concentration of population, and effect on transportation, water, 

sewerage, schools, parks and other public facilities; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council further considered among other things the character of the 

proposed district and its peculiar suitability for particular use requested and the view to conserve 

the value of the buildings, and encourage the most appropriate use of the land throughout this City; 

and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the requested Amendment to the Comprehensive 

Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map to effect the change in zoning for the Property promotes the 

health and the general welfare,  provides the Property with adequate light and air, prevents over-

crowding of land, avoids undue population concentration, and facilitates the adequate provision of 

transportation, water, sewerage, schools, parks and other public requirements; as well as the 

general health, safety and welfare of the community;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CORINTH, TEXAS:  

 

SECTION 1. 

INCORPORATION OF PREMISES 

 

 The above and foregoing recitals are found to be true and correct and are incorporated into 

the body of this Ordinance for all purposes. 

 

43



Ordinance No. 20-02-06- 

Page 3 of 11 

SECTION 2 

LEGAL PROPERTY DESCRIPTION; AMENDMENT 

That Ordinance No. 13-05-02-08, adopting the Unified Development Code of the City of 

Corinth (“UDC”), including the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance that establishes zoning districts 

in accordance with the City’s Comprehensive Plan and the Zoning Map of the City of Corinth, is 

hereby amended to change the zoning classification on an approximate 2.627 acre tract of land 

described in "Exhibit A" attached hereto and incorporated herein (the “Property”), from C-2, 

Commercial to a PD-Planned Development zoning district with a base zoning designation of C-2, 

Commercial and identified as Enterprise Planned Development District No. 54 (“PD-54”), and the 

Zoning Map of the City is also hereby amended to reflect the new zoning classification for the 

Property. 

SECTION 3. 

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT PLAN 

The Planned Development Concept Plan for the Property as set forth in “Exhibit B”, a copy 

of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein, is hereby approved. 

SECTION 4. 

LAND USE REGULATIONS 

A. The Zoning and Land Use Regulations set forth in “Exhibit C” attached hereto and made a

part hereof for all purposes are hereby adopted and shall be adhered to in their entirety for

the purposes of this PD-Planned Development zoning district with a base zoning

designation C-2, Commercial. In the event of conflict between the provisions of “Exhibit C”

and provisions of any other City zoning regulations, including without limitation the

regulations governing the C-2, Commercial zoning district, the provisions of “Exhibit C”

shall control.

B. That the zoning regulations and district herein established have been adopted in accordance

with the Comprehensive Plan for the purpose of promoting the health, safety, morals and

the general welfare of the community. They have been designed, with respect to both

present conditions and the conditions reasonably anticipated to exist in the foreseeable

future; to lessen congestion in the streets; to provide adequate light and air; to prevent over-

crowding of land; to avoid undue concentration of population; and to facilitate the adequate

provision of transportation, water, sewerage, drainage and surface water, parks and other

commercial needs and development of the community. They have been made after a full

and complete hearing with reasonable consideration among other things of the character of

the district and its peculiar suitability for the particular uses and with a view of conserving

the value of buildings and encouraging the most appropriate use of land throughout the

community

C. The Planned Development Concept Plan (Exhibit “B”) and the Land Use Regulations

(Exhibit “C”) shall control the use and development of the Property, and all building

permits and development requests shall be in accordance with applicable City ordinances,

44



Ordinance No. 20-02-06- 

Page 4 of 11 
 

the PD Concept Plan and Land Use Regulations.  The PD Concept Plan and Land Use 

Regulations   shall remain in effect as set forth herein unless amended by the City Council. 

 

If a change to the Concept Plan, is requested, the request shall be processed in accordance 

with the development standards in effect at the time the change is requested for the 

proposed development and shall be subject to City Council approval. 

 

SECTION 5. 

PENALTY FOR VIOLATIONS 

 

Any person, firm, or corporation who intentionally, knowingly or recklessly violates any 

provision of this Ordinance or the Code of Ordinances, as amended hereby, shall be subject to a 

fine not to exceed the sum of five hundred dollars ($500.00) for each offense, and each and every 

day any such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense, provided, 

however, that in all cases involving violation of any provision of this Ordinance or Code of 

Ordinances, as amended hereby, governing the fire safety, zoning, or public health and sanitation 

shall be subject to a fine not to exceed the sum of two thousand dollars ($2,000.00) for each 

offense.  

 

SECTION 6. 

SEVERABILITY 

 

The provisions of the Ordinance are severable. However, in the event this Ordinance or 

any procedure provided in this Ordinance becomes unlawful, or is declared or determined by a 

judicial, administrative or legislative authority exercising its jurisdiction to be excessive, 

unenforceable, void, illegal or otherwise inapplicable, in while in part, the remaining and lawful 

provisions shall be of full force and effect and the City shall promptly promulgate new revised 

provisions in compliance with the authority’s decisions or enactment. 

 

SECTION 7. 

CUMULATIVE REPEALER 

 

This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all other Ordinances and shall not repeal any of the 

provisions of such Ordinances except for those instances where there are direct conflicts with the 

provisions of this Ordinance. Ordinances, or parts thereof, in force at the time this Ordinance shall 

take effect and that are inconsistent with this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent that they 

are inconsistent with this Ordinance.  Provided however, that any complaint, action, claim or 

lawsuit which has been initiated or has arisen under or pursuant to such other Ordinances on this 

date of adoption of this Ordinance shall continue to be governed by the provisions of such 

Ordinance and for that purpose the Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

SECTION 8. 

SAVINGS 
 

 All rights and remedies of the City of Corinth, Texas are expressly saved as to any and all 

violations of the provisions of any other ordinance affecting zoning for the Property which have 

45



Ordinance No. 20-02-06- 

Page 5 of 11 
 
secured at the time of the effective date of this ordinance; and, as to such accrued violations and all 

pending litigation, both civil and criminal, whether pending in court or not, under such ordinances 

same shall not be affected by this Ordinance but may be prosecuted until final disposition by the court. 

  

SECTION 9. 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

This ordinance shall become effective after approval and publication as provided by law.  The City 

Secretary is directed to publish the caption and penalty of this ordinance two times. 

 

DULY PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CORINTH THIS 6th DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2020. 

 

       APPROVED: 

 

       ____________________________________ 

  

       Bill Heidemann, Mayor 

       

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Kimberly Pence, City Secretary 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

______________________________ 

Patricia Adams, City Attorney 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

46



Ordinance No. 20-02-06- 

Page 6 of 11 

EXHIBIT “A”  

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

47



Ordinance No. 20-02-06- 

Page 7 of 11 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 

CONCEPT PLAN 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

48



49

Brodriguez
Text Box
Exhibit "B"

Brodriguez
Rectangle



50

Brodriguez
Rectangle



51

Brodriguez
Rectangle



52

Brodriguez
Rectangle



53

Brodriguez
Rectangle



Ordinance No. 20-02-06- 

Page 8 of 11 
 

 
EXHIBIT "C" 

LAND USE 

REGULATIONS 

 

 
SECTION 1: REGULATIONS 
 

A. Purpose: The regulations set forth herein provide development standards for Non Residential 
Commercial designations along with uses associated with Used Automotive Dealerships – Sales, 
Automobile and Pick-up Truck Rental, Truck Rental, Outside Display and  Accessory Uses of 
Above Ground Storage Fuel Dispensing, Automatic Automobile Wash and Box Truck Manual 
Wash facilities. All uses allowed within the C-2 Commercial District are allowed within this 
Planned Development.  

B. Base District: The current C-2, Commercial District regulations of the Corinth Unified 
Development Code, as amended, shall apply except as modified herein. 

SECTION 2: USES AND AREA REGULATIONS: 
 

A. Purpose: This district is intended to provide for the development of a car/pick-up truck and 
truck rentals with associated used-only automobile dealership.  Accessory uses shall include an 
above ground fuel storage tank (for private use only), an enclosed automatic carwash, an open 
truck wash structure and product display areas. 

B. Permitted Uses and Use Regulations: In the Planned Development (PD  C-2) District for 
Commercial Use, no building or land shall be used and no building shall be hereafter erected , 
reconstructed, enlarged or converted, unless permitted by the Commercial (C-2) District 
regulations of the Unified Development Code except as otherwise allowed in this PD Ordinance . 
The Permitted Uses in the C-2 Commercial District as listed in Subsection 2.07 of the Unified 
Development Code, shall be permitted uses and shall also include the following use(s): 

1) Automobile Sales-Used Automobiles only 

a. Used automobile sales shall only be permitted in conjunction with the 
automobile/pick-up truck rental and truck rental uses.  
 

2) Re-sale of vehicles taken in trade on sales of primary inventory provided they meet the 
following conditions: 
a. The trade-in vehicle is four (4) model years old, or younger, and: 

b. The trade-in vehicle passes the same quality checks as are applied to rental fleet 
cars added to inventory, comprising body condition, safety and mechanical 
checklists. 

3) Product Display Area 

4) Automobile and Pick-up Truck Rental 

5) Truck Rental-maximum length 36’ with a GTW of 26,000 pounds 

54



Ordinance No. 20-02-06- 

Page 9 of 11 

6) Accessory Use-Above Ground Fuel Storage (UL 2085 Tank) for private use only-no retail
sales of fuel.

7) Accessory Use-Enclosed Automatic Carwash

8) Accessory Use-Open Truck Wash Structure

C. Development Standards:  The Development Standards for this PD are the development
standards for C-2 Commercial, Section 2.05.02 of the City's Unified Development Code except as
otherwise stated herein.

1) UDC 2.07.07 Accessory Buildings and Uses shall apply.
2) UDC 2.08.05 Nonresidential Dimensional Regulations shall apply
3) UDC 2.09.01 Landscape Regulations shall apply except as modified as follows:

I. Landscaping along Pecan Creek Drive and behind the residential lots shall
be a combination of 3’-0”  ( 3’-6” above drive grade) screening berms,
robust shrubbery, ornamental and canopy trees to a.) assist in screening
the rear of the building and accessory buildings from view and b.)
compliment the adjacent landscape in the residential district as indicated in
Exhibit B, sheet 4 of 5.  All other landscaped areas shall comply with the
City’s Unified Development Code.

II. Irrigation at the traditional landscape along Pecan Creek will be broadcast
while the balance of the site will incorporate drip and point irrigation to
conserve water resources.

4) UDC 2.09.02 Tree Preservation Regulations shall apply.
5) UDC 2.09.03 Vehicle Parking Regulations shall apply with the following

clarifications:
a) Code required parking shall be based on 1 space per 300 SF of gross

building area.
b) Customer parking shall be computed on the basis of 1 space per 500 SF

of the sales and rental areas.
6) UDC 2.09.04 Building Façade Material Standards shall apply except for the

following:
a) The exterior facade guidelines have been established within the

Concept Plan, Concept Building Elevations and Percentages of Building
Façade Materials charts provided in Exhibit B, sheets 3 and 5, of 5.

7) UDC 2.09.05 Residential Adjacency Standards shall be voluntarily applied (not
required for I-35 properties) except for the following:

b) UDC 2.09.05.1 Building materials will be permitted as shown on Exhibit
B, sheet 3 and 5, of 5. Building Elevations and Percentages of Building
Facade Materials charts are provided in Exhibit B sheet 3 of 5.

c) In lieu of providing a fence along the rear of the adjacent residential
lots includes a 35’-0” landscaped buffer with turf grass and trees as
detailed in Exhibit B, sheets 1 and 4 of 5.

d) UDC 2.09.05.2 No building, including buildings with a footprint of six
thousand (6,000) square feet or less (as provided for in the UDC
2.09.05), shall be required to feature a pitched roof to maintain
continuity of architectural design across the entire site.

55



Ordinance No. 20-02-06- 

Page 10 of 11 
 

e) Loudspeaker communications systems will not be permitted. 
8) UDC 2.09.06 Nonresidential Architectural Standards shall comply with the 

architectural elevations provided in Exhibit B, sheet 3 of 5. 
9) UDC 2.09.07 Lighting and Glare Regulations shall be subject to the following 

exceptions and supplemental provisions: 
a) LED luminaires are accepted for site lighting. 
b) Site luminaire heads shall not exceed 28’-0” from adjacent ground 

surface. 
c) Where luminaires are adjacent to, or near, residential property, shields 

shall be installed to limit the spill over to 0 fc at the property lines.  
Luminaires shall be designed as to produce no more than 0.3fc over all 
other non-residential property lines. 

10) UDC 2.09.07 C.3-4 Automated Site Lighting shall apply with the following 
clarifications: 

a) Illumination in the Product Display Area shall be between 15 and 10 fc 
during the period from dark to 10 PM at which time the lighting 
controls shall automatically reduce the intensity to between 2.5 and 
1.5 fc for night security lighting. 

b) All other site lighting shall be between 2.5 and 1.5 fc from dusk to 
dawn for security lighting. 

c) Lighting spilling onto adjacent properties shall be governed by item 9, 
c) above. 
 

11) UDC 4.01 Sign Regulations:  The regulations shall apply except as follows: 
a) UDC 4.01.15 C - Monument Sign provisions shall comply with this section of the UDC: 

I. There shall be a 15’-0” setback from property line to the nearest portion of a 
monument sign (either base or sign face). Sign area and dimensions shall comply 
with design standards for a multi-tenant monument sign along I-35 as found in 
Section 4 of the UDC. 

II. One (1) multitenant monument sign shall be placed at the I-35 right-of-way as 
located on sheet 1 of 5. 

III. Other than directional signage, as described below, only those Building Signs 
indicated on Exhibit B, sheet 3 of 5 shall be permitted.  

IV. Except for directional signage, no other signage shall be permitted along Pecan 
Creek Drive. 

b) On-site, free standing directional signage shall conform to the design criteria in the UDC and 
shall be permitted based on an on-site directional signage plan submitted to and approved 
by the Director of Planning when such signage is requested by submittal of a sign or building 
permit. Such signs shall be allowed in the quantity and at locations as approved by the 
Director of Planning. Directional signage may include directional information such as car 
sales, car rental and similar related locations on the property along with arrows or 
directional symbols to aid in internal traffic flow/control. 

c) Attached Sign - Building Mounted Signage - Building mounted signs shall comply with 
Section 4 of the City of Corinth UDC and as detailed in Exhibit B, sheet 3 of 5. 

 
d) Sign permits will require permitting aside from the building permit. 

12) UDC 4 .02 Fence and Screening Regulations shall apply except as follows: 

56



Ordinance No. 20-02-06- 

Page 11 of 11 
 

a) No fencing or pipe rails are to be installed during the initial development of the property.  
Should future security concerns dictate, a pipe rail, not to exceed 24" in height, shall be 
allowed around any portion of the site to supplement security efforts. Should future security 
concerns dictate, such installation shall be coordinated with the City of Corinth and comply 
with the City requirements and design parameters.  In this event, installation will require a 
separate permit. 

b) Aluminum access gates (open during business hours) will be installed as indicated in Exhibit 
B, sheet 1 of 5.  Details of these gates are delineated in Exhibit B, sheet 2 of 5.  The gates 
shall be equipped with a locking device allowing for owner and fire/emergency access 
utilizing a Knox Lock as detailed on sheet 2 of 5. 

c) All mechanical equipment is roof mounted and the parapet design affords screening to a 
visual distance of 250’-0” as viewed from 5’-2” above ground level. 

d) The dumpster will be enclosed in a masonry enclosure with solid steel gates as detailed in 
Exhibit B, sheet 2 of 5.  The masonry enclosure and steel gates shall match the main building 
materials and color. 

e) The fuel tank is screened from I-35 by the building and from Pecan Creek Drive and the 
residential areas with an 8’-0” high masonry screen wall painted to match the main building 
as indicated in Exhibit B, sheets 1 and 4 of 5. 

 
14) Project Phasing and Components Included in each phase: 

a) All work indicated in Exhibit B shall be performed in a single phase. 
 
 
 
 
 

57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



Planning and Zoning Commission Regular Meeting, 

Date: MONDAY, JANUARY 27, 2020 AT 6:30 P.M.  

AND  

City Council Regular Session,  

Date: THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 6, 2020 AT 7:00 P.M. 

Dear Property Owner: 

The Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Corinth, Texas will hold a Public Hearing on Monday, 

January 27, 2020 at 6:30 P.M. and The City Council of the City of Corinth will hold a Public Hearing on 

Thursday, February 6, 2020 at 7:00 P.M. in the Corinth City Hall located at 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, 
Texas, to hear public opinion regarding the following: 

A rezoning request by Enterprise Car Sales and Rent a Car to amend the zoning classification from  C-2, 
Commercial to PD, Planned Development with a base district of C-2, Commercial on an ±7.12 acre tract of land 

legally described as Block 1, Lots 6-A1, 6-B1, and 6-C1 of the Pecan Creek Subdivision, and is situated in the 
William Garrison Survey, Abstract 1545 within the City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas and is more commonly 

known as 5150 S I-35E, Corinth, TX (Enterprise Car Sales and Rent a Car). 

As a property owner within two hundred (200) feet of this property, you are invited to attend these meetings and 

voice your opinion.  You are not required to be present, but all interested parties wishing to be heard should appear 
at the time and place stated above. 

Your opinion regarding the request on the property described above may be expressed by notation on this form 
or by letter.  You may support or oppose this request; your opposition will be considered a protest. 

I am writing in (Check as applicable) Support: ____    Opposition: ____ of the proposal. 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Name/Address 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Please do not hesitate to contact Ben Rodriguez (ben.rodriguez@cityofcorinth.com) at (940) 498-3261 if you 

have any questions regarding this rezoning request.  

This item is scheduled to go before City Council at their regular meeting on February 6, 2020.  Please check the 
City Council agenda prior to the meeting to verify placement on the February 6, 2020 agenda. The agendas are 
available on the City of Corinth website 72 hours prior to the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council 

meetings. 

65



66



S  I - 3 5 E  SERV

PEC AN  CR EEK  C IR

A S P E N

KNO L L R IDG E  DR

C R E E K W O O D

SHADOW
CREST

DR

S  I - 3 5 E  SERV

5400

5150

1251

5100

5401

5150

4901

1300

5050

5070

1665

2401

1665

2409

1665

2401

1665

2400

2403 2409

2402

2403

2407

2407

2406 2408

2405

2405

1601 2404

1600

1602

1601

1600

1512

1603

1602

1608

1610

1603

1605

1606

1604

1604
1607

1618

1510

1612

1513

1506
1504

1508

1615

1606

1511

1617
1609

1609

1512

1620

1514

1502

1616

1607
1622

1614

1608 1613
1605

1611

2225

1612

1610

1509

1507

2227

1614 16192229

Parcels within 200ft.
of Property to be

Rezoned.
City of Corinth, TX

Legend
200 ft. Buffer
Clipped Parcel

0 140 280 Feet

The property owners, duly 
signed and acknowledged,
of twenty (20) percent or

more of the lots or land area
within a two hundred (200) 
foot radius of the exterior

boundary of the area included
in a proposed amendment.

 

 

67



   
    BUSINESS ITEM    5.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 02/06/2020  
Title: Public Tree Care Ordinance
Submitted For: Cody Collier, Director  Submitted By: Cody Collier, Director
Finance Review: Yes Legal Review: Yes
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Citizens Engagement &Proactive

Government
Regional Cooperation

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on approval of a Public Tree Care Ordinance which provides for principles, best management
practices, and tree management on all publicly owned property. 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
 The City of Corinth has been working with Tree City USA since late 2018 to become members.  We have met all
previous requirements including establishing arbor day events, tree plantings, publicizing events, budgeting the
required $2.00 per capita, and establishing a Tree Preservation Ordinance in 2019 (Planning Department) for tree
preservation.  The final component is approval of Tree City USA's model ordinance presented herein. Upon
successful adoption of this ordinance, Corinth will then apply for full member status and receive recognition as a
member of the Tree City USA community.
 

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of the Public Tree Care Ordinance.
 

Attachments
Public Tree Care Ordinance 

68



Model Public Tree Care Ordinance for Texas Communities 

ORDINANCE NO. 20-02-06-__ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CORINTH, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 

CITY’S CODE OF ORDINANCES BY AMENDING TITLE V: “PUBLIC 

WORKS” TO CREATE A NEW CHAPTER 58: “PUBLIC TREE CARE” OF 

THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CORINTH; TO PROVIDE 

FOR THE CARE OF PUBLIC TREES; TO CREATE A TREE ADVISORY 

BOARD; TO ESTABLISH PRACTICES GOVERNING THE PLANTING, 

CARE AND REMOVAL OF TREES ON PUBLIC PROPERTY; TO MAKE 

PROVISION FOR THE REMOVAL OF DISEASED TREES ON PRIVATE 

PROPERTY UNDER CERTAIN CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR THE 

INCORPORATION OF PREMISES; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY FOR 

VIOLATIONS; PROVIDING FOR AMENDMENTS; PROVIDING A 

CUMULATIVE REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR SAVINGS AND 

SEVERABILITY CLAUSES; AND PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION AND 

AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Corinth, Texas, recognizes that trees generally protect 

and enhance the quality of life and general welfare of the town; and 

WHEREAS, the citizens of Corinth have long valued trees as a natural and often irreplaceable 

community resource and recognize them as assets for their beauty and service; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of Corinth, Texas, has further determined that the protection and 
care of trees located on city property is essential to the present and future health, safety, and 
welfare of all citizens, and accordingly, have determined that the adoption and implementation of 

this “Public Tree Care" ordinance is meritorious and necessary. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CORINTH, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1. 

INCORPORATION OF PREMISES 

The above and foregoing recitals are found to be true and correct and are incorporated into the body 
of this Ordinance for all purposes. 

SECTION 2. 

AMENDMENTS 

2.01.  That the City of Corinth, Texas Code of Ordinances, Title V, “Public Works” is hereby 
amended to add a new Chapter 58 titled “Public Tree Care” and shall be and read in its entirety as 

follows, with all other sections of Title V, not expressly amended hereby remaining in full force 
and effect. 

“CHAPTER 58. PUBLIC TREE CARE 

69



-2- 

 

Model Public Tree Care Ordinance for Texas Communities 

 

Sec. 58.01 - Purpose. 

To enhance the quality of life and the present and future health, safety, and welfare of all citizens, 
to enhance property values, and to ensure proper planting and care of trees on public property, the 

City Council herein delegates the authority and responsibility for managing public trees, 
establishes practices governing the planting and care of trees on public property, and makes 

provision for the emergency removal of trees on private property under certain conditions. 
 
Sec. 58.02 - Definitions. 

As used in this Article, the following words and phrases shall have the meanings indicated: 

Damage – any injury to or destruction of a tree, including but not limited to: uprooting; 

severance of all or part the root system or main trunk; storage of material on or compaction 
of surrounding soil; a substantial change in the natural grade above a root system or around 
a trunk; surrounding the tree with impervious paving materials; or any trauma caused by 

accident or collision. 

Nuisance – any tree, or limb thereof, that has an infectious disease or insect; is dead or 

dying; obstructs the view of traffic signs or the free passage of pedestrians or vehicles; or 
threatens public health, safety and welfare. 

Parkway – the area along a public street between the curb and the sidewalk; or if there is no 

curb or sidewalk, the unpaved portion of the area between the street right-of-way line and 
the paved portion of the street or alley. 

Public property – all grounds and rights-of-way (ROWs) owned or maintained by the City. 

Public tree – any tree or woody vegetation on city-owned or city-maintained property or 
rights-of-way. 

Top or Topping – the non-standard practice of cutting back of limbs to stubs within a tree’s 
crown to such a degree so as to remove the normal canopy and disfigure the tree. 

 
Sec. 58.03 - Authority and power. 

(a) Delegation of authority and responsibility. The Public Works Director and/or his designee, 

hereinafter referred to as the “Director”, shall have the authority and responsibility to plant, 
prune, maintain and remove trees and woody plants growing in or upon all city streets, 

rights-of-ways, city parks, and other public property. This shall include the removal of trees 
that may threaten electrical, telephone, gas, or any municipal water or sewer line, or any 
tree that is affected by fungus, insect, or other pest disease. 

(b) Coordination among city departments. All city departments will coordinate as necessary 
with the Director and will provide services as required to ensure compliance with this 

Ordinance as it relates to streets, alleys, rights-of-way, drainage, easements and other 
public properties not under direct jurisdiction of the Director. 

(c) Interference. No person shall hinder, prevent, delay, or interfere with the Director or his 

agents while engaged in carrying out the execution or enforcement of this Ordinance. 
 

Sec. 58.04 - Tree planting and care standards.  

(a) Standards. All planting and maintenance of public trees shall conform to the American 
National Standards Institute (ANSI) A-300 "Standards for Tree Care Operations" and shall 

follow all tree care Best Management Practices (BMPs) published by the International 
Society of Arboriculture. 

70



-3- 

 

Model Public Tree Care Ordinance for Texas Communities 

 

(b) Requirements of franchise utility companies. Franchise utility companies shall provide 
advance notice to the City of their intended non-emergency tree pruning schedule and 
location of impacted area. The maintenance of public trees for utility clearance shall 

conform to all applicable utility industry standards. 
(c) Tree species list. The Director shall develop and maintain an official list of desirable tree 

species for planting on public property in two size classes: Understory “Small” (20 feet or 
less in height at maturity) and Canopy “Shade” (greater than 20 feet at maturity). Only 
trees from this approved list may be planted without written approval from the Director. 

(d) Planting distances. The Director shall develop and maintain an official set of spacing 
requirements for the planting of trees on public property. No tree may be planted within the 

visibility triangle of a street intersection or within ten (10) feet of a fire hydrant. 
(e) Planting trees under electric utility lines. Only trees listed as Ornamental trees on the 

official city tree species list may be planted under or within fifteen (15) lateral feet of any 

overhead utility wire. 
(f) Protection of public trees during construction. Any person, firm, corporation, or city 

department performing construction in the area of any public tree must employ appropriate 
measures to protect the tree, including, but not limited to, placing barriers around the tree to 
prevent any damage. 

 
Sec. 58.05. Adjacent owner responsibility. 

(a) The owner of land adjacent to any city street or highway, when acting within the provisions 
of this Ordinance, may plant and maintain trees in the adjacent parkway area. Property 
owners are responsible for the reasonable and routine maintenance of trees and other 

landscaping in the adjacent parkway area. 
(b) No property owner shall allow a tree, or other plant growing on his or her property or 

within the adjacent parkway to obstruct or interfere with pedestrians or the view of drivers, 
thereby creating a hazard. If an obstruction persists, the Director shall notify the property 
owner to prune or remove the tree or plant. If the owner fails to comply with the notice, the 

City may undertake the necessary work and charge the cost to the property owner. 
 

Sec. 58.06 - Prohibition against harming public trees. 

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person, firm or corporation to damage, remove, or cause the 
damage or removal of a tree on public property without written permission from the 

Director. 
(b) It shall be unlawful for any person, firm or corporation to attach any cable, wire or signs or 

any other object to any street, park, or public tree. 
(c) It shall be unlawful for any person, firm or corporation to “top” any public tree. Trees 

severely damaged by storms or other causes, where best pruning practices are impractical 

may be exempted from this provision at the determination of the Director. 
 

Sec. 58.07 - Certain trees declared a nuisance. 

Any tree, or limb thereof, on private property determined by the Director to have contracted a 
lethal, communicable disease or insect; to be dead or dying; to obstruct the view of traffic signs or 

the free passage of pedestrians or vehicles; or that threatens public health, safety, and welfare is 
declared a nuisance and the City may require its treatment or removal. Private property owners 

have the duty, at their own expense, to remove or treat nuisance trees on their property. The City 
may remove such trees at the owner's expense if the owner does not comply with treatment and/or 
removal as specified by the Director within the written notification period. 

71



-4- 

 

Model Public Tree Care Ordinance for Texas Communities 

 

 
Sec. 58.8 - Violations and penalty. 

Any person, firm or corporation violating any provision of this Ordinance shall be deemed guilty 

of a misdemeanor and shall be subject to a fine not to exceed five hundred dollars ($500.00) for 
each offense. 

 
SECTION 3. 

CUMULATIVE REPEALER 

 

This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all other Ordinances and shall not repeal any of the 
provisions of such Ordinances except for those instances where there are direct conflicts with the 
provisions of this Ordinance. Ordinances, or parts thereof, in force at the time this Ordinance shall 

take effect and that are inconsistent with this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent that they 
are inconsistent with this Ordinance. Provided however, that any complaint, action, claim or lawsuit 
which has been initiated or has arisen under or pursuant to such other Ordinances on this date of 

adoption of this Ordinance shall continue to be governed by the provisions of such Ordinance and 
for that purpose the Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
SECTION 4. 

SAVINGS 

 

 All rights and remedies of the City of Corinth, Texas are expressly saved as to any and all 

violations of the provisions of any other ordinance affecting fees which have secured at the time of 
the effective date of this ordinance; and, as to such accrued violations and all pending litigation, both 
civil and criminal, whether pending in court or not, under such ordinances same shall not be affected 

by this Ordinance but may be prosecuted until final disposition by the court. 
  

SECTION 5. 

SEVERABILITY 

 

The provisions of the Ordinance are severable. However, in the event this Ordinance or any 
procedure provided in this Ordinance becomes unlawful, or is declared or determined by a judicia l, 

administrative or legislative authority exercising its jurisdiction to be excessive, unenforceable, void, 
illegal or otherwise inapplicable, in while in part, the remaining and lawful provisions shall be of 
full force and effect and the City shall promptly promulgate new revised provisions in compliance 

with the authority’s decisions or enactment. 
 

SECTION 6. 

PUBLICATION AND EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

This Ordinance shall take effect upon its passage and publication as required by law. The 
City Secretary is directed to publish the caption of this Ordinance as required by the City Charter 

and state law. 
 
 

 

 

 

72



-5- 

 

Model Public Tree Care Ordinance for Texas Communities 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS ______th DAY OF ____________, 2020. 

 

APPROVED: 

 
 

Bill Heidemann, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 

 
 

Kimberly Pence, City Secretary 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 

Patricia Adams, City Attorney 

 
 

73



   
    BUSINESS ITEM    6.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 02/06/2020  
Title: Resolution Ordering a Joint General Election
Submitted For: Bob Hart, City Manager  Submitted By: Kim Pence, City Secretary
Finance Review: N/A Legal Review: Yes
City Manager Review: Bob Hart, City Manager

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on a Resolution ordering a Joint General Election with Denton County to be held on May 2, 2020
to fill the offices of one Council Member for Place 1, One Council Member for Place 3 and One Council Member
for Place 4; establishing procedures for that election and providing an effective date.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
The General Election for the City Council Members is set forth by the Home Rule Charter and by the Texas
Election Code and is required to be held on May 2, 2020 at which time the voters will elect persons to fill the City
Council Places 1, 3 and 4.

The Texas Election Code authorizes the governing bodies of political subdivisions to hold joint elections and this
Resolution orders a joint election and establishes and sets forth procedures for conducting the election.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 20-02-06- Ordering a Joint General Election to be held on May 2,
2020.

Attachments
Resolution 

74



 
Page 1 

RESOLUTION NO.  20-02-06- 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORINTH, 

TEXAS, (“CITY”), ORDERING AND CALLING A JOINT GENERAL 

ELECTION WITH DENTON COUNTY, TEXAS, (“COUNTY”), TO BE HELD 

ON MAY 2, 2020, FOR THE PURPOSE OF ELECTING PERSONS TO FILL 

THE OFFICES OF ONE (1) COUNCIL MEMBER FOR PLACE NO. 1 AND 

ONE (1) COUNCIL MEMBER FOR PLACE NO. 3 AND ONE (1) COUNCIL 

MEMBER FOR PLACE NO. 4, TO THE CORINTH CITY COUNCIL, EACH 

FOR A TERM OF TWO YEARS; PROVIDING FOR THE 

INCORPORATION OF PREMISES; SPECIFYING THE DATE OF 

ELECTION; ESTABLISHING PROCEDURES FOR THE ELECTION; 

PROVIDING FOR ADMINISTRATION OF A JOINT GENERAL ELECTION 

BY DENTON COUNTY; PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION AND POSTING 

OF NOTICE OF ELECTION; PROVIDING AN AGREEMENT WITH 

DENTON COUNTY; ESTABLISHING DATES FOR CANVASSING; 

PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City of Corinth, Texas, (the "City") is a home rule city acting under its Charter 
adopted by the electorate pursuant to Article XI, Section 5 of the Texas Constitution and Chapter 9 of 
the Local Government Code; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 3.004 of the Texas Election Code (the “Election Code”) provides that 
the governing body of a municipality shall be the authority to order a Joint General Election; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to and hereby calls a Joint General Election for the 
purpose of electing (3) City Council members to the City of Corinth City Council, such election to be 

held as set forth by Charter and by the Texas Election Code; and 

WHEREAS, the Joint General Election shall be held on May 2, 2020, at which time the voters 
will elect persons to fill City Council Places 1, 3, and 4 of the Corinth City Council, each for a term 
of two (2) years; and 

WHEREAS, the Texas Election Code authorizes the governing bodies of polit ica l 
subdivisions to hold joint elections; and  

WHEREAS, the City is entering into an Interlocal Agreement for Election Services with 
Denton County to provide election administration meeting the requirements of the Election Code, a 

copy of which agreement shall be incorporated into this Resolution upon approval and execution by 
Denton County and the City; and 

WHEREAS, the Joint General Election shall be conducted in accordance with the Election 
Code under the jurisdiction of the Denton County Elections Administrator (the “Elect ion 

75



 

Administrator”); and 

WHEREAS, Section 85.004 of the Election Code provides that an election order and the 
election notice must state the location of the main early voting polling place; and 

WHEREAS, by this Resolution, it is the intention of the City Council to hold a joint general 
election, to designate early voting polling location, to  set forth dates for canvassing of the 
Joint General Election and to establish and set forth the procedures for conducting the 

Election as required by the Texas Election Code and City Charter; and  

WHEREAS , the City Council finds that upon the canvassing of the re turns of the 
May 2, 2020 election, this Resolution and election order shall be enacted as set forth herein.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CORINTH, TEXAS, THAT: 

Section 1.    Incorporation of Premises.  The above recitals are true and correct and are hereby 
incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if fully set forth herein.    

Section 2.      Joint General Election Called.  A Joint General Election (the “Election”) is hereby 
ordered and called to elect one (1) Council member to Place No. 1, and one (1) Council member to 
Place No. 3, and one (1) Council member to Place No. 4, each to serve two (2) year terms on the 

City Council of the City of Corinth.   The Election shall be held at the Corinth City Hall, 3300 Corinth 
Parkway, Corinth, Texas 76208, on the 2nd day of May, 2020, from 7:00 a.m. until 7:00 p.m. 

Section 3.          Application for Place on Ballot.  Election Code Section 141.001, as amended, and 
Section 3.03 of the Corinth Home Rule Charter set forth the qualifications for a person to be eligib le 

for a public elective office (“Qualified Persons”).   Qualified Persons may file as candidates for office 
by filing a sworn application in the Office of the City Secretary not earlier than January 15, 2020 and 

not later than 5:00 p.m. on February 14, 2020 (the “Filing Period”).  Applications will be accepted in 
the Office of the City Secretary during regular business hours during the Filing Period in accordance 
with the Election Code; except for February 14, 2020, on which date applications will be accepted 

from 7:30 a.m. until 5:00 p.m.   

Section 4.         Dates and Hours of Early Voting – Main Early Voting Location.  The Election 
Administrator, Frank Phillips, shall serve as the Early Voting Clerk.  Deputy early voting 

judges/clerks will be appointed as needed to process early voting mail and to conduct early voting.  
Further, the Elections Administrator and/or the Early Voting Clerk are hereby authorized to appoint 

the members of the Early Voting Ballot Board and the presiding judge and alternate judge in 
accordance with the requirements of the Election Code.     

The main early voting place is located at 701 Kimberly Drive, Suite A101, Denton, Texas 76208 and 

voting shall occur as provided herein. Early Voting hours are Monday, April 20, 2020 through 
Saturday, April 25, 2020 from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. each day. Additional Early Voting hours are 
Monday, April 27, 2020 and Tuesday, April 28, 2020 from 7:00 a.m. until 7:00 p.m. each day.  Early 

76



 

Voting at Corinth City Hall, 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas 76208 shall occur on the same 
dates and times listed herein.  Early voting shall be conducted by the Early Voting Clerk, at the main 
early voting polling location listed above. 

Early voting by mail shall be conducted in conformance with the requirements of the Election Code.  
Ballot applications and ballots voted by mail shall be sent to:  Early Voting Clerk, 701 Kimberly 
Drive, Suite A101, Denton, Texas 76208 (the official mailing address of the Early Voting Clerk).  The 

voting precincts for the Election shall be designated by their respective county precinct numbers.   
 

Early voting by personal appearance shall be conducted at the times on the dates and at the locations 
designated herein and on Exhibit “A” hereto (described below) in accordance with this section.   
Early voting location and times may be changed or additional early voting locations may be added 

by the Denton County Elections Administrator without further action of the City Council or 
amendment to this Resolution, as is necessary for the proper conduct of the Election.  

Section 5.            Governing Law and Qualified Voters. The Election shall be held in accordance 
with the Constitution of the State of Texas and the Election Code, and all resident qualified voters of 
the City shall be eligible to vote at the election. 

 
Section 6. Publication and Posting of Notice of Election. Notice of the election shall be 

given as required by the Election Code, and the Charter of the City of Corinth.  Notice shall be provided 
by posting a notice containing a substantial copy of this Resolution in both English and Spanish at 
Corinth City Hall on the bulletin board used for posting notices of the meetings of the City Council and 
by publication of such notice one time in a newspaper of general circulation published within the City; 

the date of the publication to be not earlier than the 30th day or later than the 10th day before the Election 
day.  The notice shall contain information as provided by the Election Administrator regarding polling 
places and early voting and such other matters as required by law. 

Section 7. Denton County to Conduct Election / Election Contract.  The Election shall be 
conducted in accordance with the Election Code under the jurisdiction of the Denton County 

Elections Administrator (the “Election Administrator”), pursuant to an Election Services Contract 
between the City and Denton County, and other participating entities, if any, as described therein, 
(the “Contract”), a copy of which Contract shall be incorporated herein as Exhibit “A” upon its 

final approval and execution by the City.   Voting shall be by electronic method. 

The Mayor, the City Manager or designee, is authorized to amend or supplement any and all 
contracts for the administration of the Election and any Special Election, including without 
limitation the Election Services Contract, to the extent required for the Election to be conducted in 

an efficient and legal manner as determined by the Election Administrator and in accordance with 
the Election Code. In the event that no election is necessary, the City Secretary shall notify the 

County and shall present the City Council a Resolution or Ordinance cancelling the election.  

 

77



Section 8.      Canvass of Election.  Pursuant to Section 67.002 of the Election Code, the City Council will 

canvass the election not earlier than May 5, 2020 and not later than May 13, 2020.  Notice of the time and 

place for canvass shall be posted on the official bulletin board of the City in the same manner as required by 

the Open Meetings Act for City Council meetings in accordance with Chapter 551 of the Local Government 

Code. 

Section 9.       Necessary Actions. The Mayor and the City Secretary of the City, in consultation with 

the City Attorney, are hereby authorized and directed to take any and all actions necessary to comply 

with the provisions of the Election Code or other applicable law in carrying out and conducting the 

election, whether or not expressly authorized herein. 

Section 10.     Severability.  If any section, article, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase or word in 
this Resolution or application thereof to any person or circumstance is held invalid or 
unconstitutional by a Court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not affect the validity of 

the remaining portions of this Resolution, and the City Council hereby declares it would have passed 
such remaining portions of this Resolution despite such invalidity, which remaining portions shall 

remain in full force and effect. 

Section 11. Effective Date. This Resolution shall be effective upon its adoption. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this  day of , 2020. 

CITY OF CORINTH 

Bill Heidemann, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Kimberly Pence, City Secretary 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Patricia Adams, City Attorney 

• 

78



 

EXHIBIT “A” 
JOINT ELECTION AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF CORINTH, TEXAS AND DENTON COUNTY 
 

Incorporated by Reference 

79



   
    BUSINESS ITEM    7.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 02/06/2020  
Title: Resolution designating a multi-purpose amphitheater and related infrastructure
Submitted For: Jason Alexander, Director  Submitted By: Jason Alexander, Director
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Land Development

Infrastructure Development
Economic Development
Citizen Engagement & Proactive
Government
Regional Cooperation

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Corinth, Texas designating a multi-purpose
amphitheater and related infrastructure as a venue project (the "Amphitheater Venue Project”) and designating a
method of financing the Amphitheater Venue Project, a new short-term motor vehicle rental tax at a rate not to
exceed five (5) percent, in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 334 of the Texas Local Government Code, as
amended.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Chapter 334 of the Texas Local Government Code, as amended, allows municipalities and counties to impose a
wide variety of taxes as methods to finance tourism, sports and community venues. One of those taxes is the seldom
used short-term motor vehicle rental tax. The short-term motor vehicle rental tax requires the approval of voters ---
and the tax cannot exceed five (5) percent and can only be imposed on motor vehicle rentals of thirty (30) days or
less. If the tax is approved, the revenues generated may be used to finance the venue and its related infrastructure
(e.g., "any store, restaurant, on-site hotel, concession, automobile parking facility, area transportation facility, road,
street, water or sewer facility, park, or other on-site or off-site improvement that relates to and enhances the use,
value, or appeal of a venue, including areas adjacent to the venue, and any other expenditure reasonably necessary
to construct, improve, renovate, or expand a venue, including an expenditure for environmental remediation").
Also, if the tax is approved, it becomes effective by ordinance (municipality) or order (county) --- and it expires
after all bonds and other obligations are paid in full.

Imposition of a short-term motor vehicle rental tax in Corinth can generate additional revenue to finance the
multi-purpose amphitheater and its related infrastructure while simultaneously reducing financial dependency on the
Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone (TIRZ) to stimulate private and public investment within the community's urban
core. In addition, the imposition of the tax can enhance economic development efforts to attract, expand and retain
businesses --- and in particular --- restaurants and retailers that benefit from the proximity to the multi-purpose
amphitheater and the future transit stop.

The businesses with on-site motor vehicle rentals that may be impacted by the imposition of a short-term motor
vehicle rental tax include:
  
With Service Only With or Without Service
Caliber Collision Harley-Davidson
Classic of Denton  
Classic Pre-Owned of Denton  
Gunn Nissan of Denton  
Huffines Kia of Corinth  

80



Huffines Subaru of Corinth  

In sum, imposition of a short-term motor vehicle rental tax in Corinth can prove extremely beneficial with respect
to attracting new investment to the urban core and creating a thriving mixed-use district focused around a transit
stop in support of the goals of the Strategic Plan and the TIRZ.

However, before the City can call an election on the imposition of a short-term motor vehicle rental tax, the City
Council must first approve a resolution designating the venue project and the method for financing the venue
project among other things. A resolution designating the multi-purpose amphitheater and its related infrastructure as
a venue project and designating a new short-term motor vehicle rental tax as the method for financing is attached
for the City Council's consideration and action. Further, it should be noted that the City Council must determine a
rate for the short-term motor vehicle rental tax. The short-term motor vehicle rental tax can be imposed in
increments of one-eighth (1/8) of one percent, but the rate cannot exceed a maximum of five (5) percent.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends that the City Council approve the Resolution as presented and impose a short-term motor vehicle
tax at a rate not to exceed five (5) percent in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 334 of the Texas Local
Government Code, as amended.

Attachments
Resolution Designating Project Venue 

81



 

RESOLUTION NO.    

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORINTH, 
TEXAS, DESIGNATING A MULTIPURPOSE AMPHITHEATER AND 
RELATED INFRASTRUCTURE AS A SPORTS AND COMMUNITY VENUE 
PROJECT (THE “AMPHITHEATER VENUE PROJECT”), AT THE 
PROPOSED LOCATION OF 3221 CORINTH PARKWAY, CORINTH, TEXAS 
76208, AND DESIGNATING A METHOD OF FINANCING THE 
AMPHITHEATER VENUE PROJECT, A NEW SHORT TERM MOTOR 
VEHICLE RENTAL TAX AT A RATE OF __%, IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
CHAPTER 334 OF THE TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE, AS 
AMENDED; PROVIDING FOR THE INCORPORATION OF PREMISES; 
PROVIDING FOR THE DESIGNATION OF A MULTIPURPOSE 
AMPHITHEATER AND RELATED INFRASTRUCTURE AS A SPORTS AND 
COMMUNITY VENUE PROJECT; PROVIDING A METHOD OF 
FINANCING THE AMPHITHEATER VENUE PROJECT; PROVIDING A 
CUMULATIVE REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING SEVERABILITY; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Corinth, Texas, (the "City") is a home rule city acting under its 

Charter adopted by the electorate pursuant to Article XI, Section 5 of the Texas Constitution and 
Chapter 9 of the Texas Local Government Code; and 

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 334 of the Texas Local Government Code authorizes a municipality 

to adopt sports and community venue projects and associated taxes to fund such venue projects; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 334.021 of the Texas Local Government Code requires a municipality, 

by  resolution,  to  designate  venue  projects,  including  related  infrastructure,  and  to  provide  
the  proposed method of financing such venue projects; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 334.022 of the Texas Local Government Code requires the City to send 

this Resolution designating the Amphitheater Venue Project and as a sports and community venue 
project and its proposed method of financing to the Texas Comptroller for the Comptroller to 
perform an analysis to determine if approval and implementation of the Resolution will have a 
significant negative festival impact on state revenue; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 334.001 of the Texas Local Government Code defines a “sports and 

community venue project” as a venue and related infrastructure that is planned, acquired, established, 
developed, constructed, or renovated under Chapter 334 of the Texas Local Government Code; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 334.001 of the Texas Local Government Code defines “venue” as an 

arena, coliseum, stadium, or other type of area of facility that is planned for civic use and for which 
a fee for admission is charged or is planned to be charged; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 334.001 of the Texas Local Government Code defines “related 

infrastructure” as any store, restaurant, on-site hotel, concession, automobile parking facility, area 
transportation  facility,  road,  street,  water  or  sewer  facility,  park,  or  other  on-site  or   off-site 

82



improvement that relates to and enhances the use, value, or appeal of a venue, including areas 
adjacent to the venue, and any other expenditure reasonably necessary to construct, improve, 
renovate, or expand a venue, including an expenditure for environmental remediation; and 

WHEREAS, once the Texas Comptroller has determined that this Resolution does not have 
a significant negative fiscal impact on state revenue, the City Council of Corinth may call and hold 
an election to ascertain whether to authorize the Amphitheater Venue Project and adopt a short 
term motor vehicle rental tax at a rate of __% to finance the project, after giving notice of such 
election as required by Chapter 4 of the Texas Elections Code; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined it appropriate to proceed with the process as 
outlined in Chapter 334 of the Texas Local Government Code for the planning, acquisition, 
establishment, development and construction of a sports and community venue project, the proposed 
Amphitheater Venue Project, as further described and depicted in Exhibits “A” and “B”, attached hereto 
and incorporated as if fully set forth herein; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CORINTH, TEXAS, THAT: 

Section 1. Incorporation  of  Premises.   The above  recitals  are true and correct  and are hereby 
incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if fully set forth herein. 

Section 2.      Designation of Venue Project.  The City Council of the City of Corinth has determined it 
necessary and  appropriate  to  designate  a  multipurpose  amphitheater  and  related  infrastructure,  the 
Amphitheater Venue Project, to be located as 3221 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas 76208, further 
described and depicted in Exhibits “A” and “B”, as a sports and community venue project pursuant to 
Section 334.021 of the Texas Local Government Code. 

Section 3.     Method of Financing Venue Project. The City Council of the City of Corinth 
hereby proposes a new short term motor vehicle rental tax, authorized by Section 334.102 of the 
Texas Local Government Code, at a rate of __%, to fund the Amphitheater Venue Project upon 
approval of a majority qualified voters at an election called and held under Section 334.024 of the 
Texas Local Government Code. 

Section 4.     Cumulative Repealer.  This Resolution shall be cumulative of all other resolutions 
and shall not repeal any of the provisions of such resolutions except for those instances where there 
are direct conflicts with the provisions of this Resolution. Resolutions, or parts thereof, in force at 
the time this Resolution shall take effect and that are inconsistent  with  this  Resolution  are 
hereby repealed to the extent that they are inconsistent with this Resolution.

83



Section 5.       Severability. If any section, article, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase or word in 
this Resolution or application thereof to any person or circumstance is held invalid or 
unconstitutional by a Court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not affect the validity of 
the remaining portions of this Resolution, and the City Council hereby declares it would have 
passed such remaining portions of this Resolution despite such invalidity, which remaining portions 
shall remain in full force and effect. 

Section 6.       Effective Date. This Resolution shall be effective upon its adoption. 

 PASSED AND APPROVED this  day of , 2020. 

CITY OF CORINTH 

Bill Heidemann, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Kimberly Pence, City Secretary 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Patricia A. Adams, City Attorney 

84



Exhibit A 
Rendering of Completed Amphitheater Venue Project 

85



Exhibit B 
Proposed Site for Amphitheater Venue Project 

86



3305

1701

Planned Amphitheatre Venue Project - City of Corinth

Esri, Inc, City of Naperville, llinois, City of Corinth

1/22/2020, 3:48:15 PM
0 0.03 0.060.01 mi

0 0.05 0.10.03 km

1:2,257

Web AppBuilder for ArcGIS
Esri., Inc., City of Naperville, llinois | City of Corinth | TheCity of Corinth |

3 2 2 1  C o r i n t h  P a r k w a y ,  C o r i n t h ,  T e x a s

87



88



BUSINESS ITEM    8. 
City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 02/06/2020
Title: Street Maintenance Sales Tax
Submitted For: Bob Hart, City Manager  Submitted By: Kim Pence, City Secretary
Finance Review: N/A Legal Review: Yes
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Land Development

Infrastructure Development
Economic Development 
Citizen Engagement & Proactive
Government

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and take action on the renewal of the Street Maintenance Sales Tax.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Over a series of workshop sessions relating to the Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone (TIRZ) and the Transit
Oriented Development (TOD) District, staff presented a number of funding sources and strategies to finance the
community's vision for infill and redevelopment within the community's core. In particular, there were discussions
focused on the Street Maintenance Tax. With this item, staff wishes to receive direction from the City Council on
renewing the Street Maintenance Tax. The Street Maintenance Tax will expire on December 31, 2020; and its
renewal requires voter approval. If the City Council desires to renew the Street Maintenance Tax, an election must
be held. It should also be noted that the voters cannot renew the Street Maintenance Tax and approve the tax for the
Fire Control District.

RECOMMENDATION
The city council allow the 1/4 cent sales tax for street maintenance be allowed to expire at the end of its current
approval period.  

89


	Agenda
	AI 1782 Emergency Management Roles
	AI 1778 TECH POLICIES
	AI 1783 Performance Goals for City Manager
	AI 1791 Fire District Procedures
	AI 1767 January 9, 2020 Workshop Session
	       ATT_Minutes
	AI 1768 January 9, 2020 Regular Session
	       ATT_Minutes
	AI 1766 RG3 metering infrastructure purchasing
	       ATT_RG3 Invoice
	AI 1774 Enterprise Rental Car
	       ATT_Enterprise PD Ordinance
	       ATT_Noncornforming release affidavit
	       ATT_Enterprise Mailed Notice
	       ATT_Enterprise Zoning Notification Buffer
	AI 1780 Public Tree Care Ordinance
	       ATT_Public Tree Care Ordinance
	AI 1779 Resolution Ordering a Joint General Election
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI 1769 Resolution designating a multi-purpose amphitheater and related infrastructure
	       ATT_Resolution Designating Project Venue
	AI 1781 Street Maintenance Sales Tax



